
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

V. 

GHOLAM KOWKABI, 

Defendant. 

Criminal No. 23-CR-193-RBW

Violation: 

26 U.S.C. § 7201 (Tax Evasion) 
18 U.S.C. § 1343 (Wire Fraud) 

STATEMENT OF OFFENSE 

The United States of America, by and through its attorney, tbe United States 

Attorney for the District of Columbia, and the defendant, GHOLAM KOWKABI, agree 

and stipulate to the facts presented below. These facts are presented for the purpose of 

demonstrating there is a factual basis for GHOLAM KOWKABl's guilty plea pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11, and do not represent all the evidence that could 

have been presented at a trial. At all times relevant to this Statement of Offense: 

A. The Internal Revenue Service & Employment Taxes

1. The Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") was an agency of the United States

Department of Treasury responsible for administering the tax laws of the United States 

including the ascertainment, computation, assessment, and collection of income taxes and 

employment taxes. 

2. Pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code and associated statutes and

regulations, employers are required to withhold amounts from their employees' gross pay 

including Federal Insurance Contribution Act ("FICA") taxes, which represent Social 

Security and Medicare taxes, and federal income taxes (collectively "trust fund taxes."). 

Employers hold the withheld amounts of trust fund taxes in trust until paid over to the 
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